
 
 
 
 
 

There may be a quorum of the Belle Plaine City Council present at the meeting.  
 

218 North Meridian St., P.O. Box 129, Belle Plaine, MN  56011 Phone 952-873-5553 fax 952-873-5509 
www.belleplainemn.com 

 
BELLE PLAINE DESIGN COMMITTEE 

NOTICE OF REGULAR MEETING AND AGENDA  
CITY HALL, 218 NORTH MERIDIAN STREET 

PLEASE USE THE NORTH ENTRANCE 
 

MONDAY, JUNE 3, 2019 
5:15 P.M. 

 
 

5:15 
P.M. 

1. CALL TO ORDER. 1.1. Roll Call. 
 

 2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA. 
 

 3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES.   
3.1. Regular Session Minutes of March 4, 2019. 
3.2. Special Session Minutes of April 30, 2019. 
 

 4. BUSINESS. 
4.1  Sign Review: Dynamic Dou Cleaning: 215 Meridian Street North 
 
4.2. Downtown Walk Through. 
 
 

 5. ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS. 
5.1. Commissioner Comments. 

 
5.2. Upcoming Meetings. 

1.  Next Regular Meeting, Monday, July 1, 2019 at 5:15PM 
 

 6. ADJOURNMENT. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
BELLE PLAINE DESIGN COMMITTEE 

REGULAR MEETING  
MARCH 4, 2019 

 
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE.  
 
President Krant led those present in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER. 1.1. Roll Call. 
 
 The Belle Plaine Design Committee conducted its Regular Meeting on Monday, March 4, 2019 at City 
Hall, 218 North Meridian Street, Belle Plaine, Minnesota. President Krant called the meeting to order at 
5:15 PM with Commissioners Linda Lawler, Benjamin Ogata, Kathy Joerg and Patricia Krings present.  
 
Also present were Council Liaison LeMieux and Community Development Director Smith Strack.  
 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA. 
 
MOTION by Commissioner Joerg, second by Commissioner Krings, to approve the agenda as presented. 
ALL VOTED AYE. MOTION CARRIED.  
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES.  3.1. Regular Session Minutes of February 4, 2019. 
 
MOTION by Commissioner Krings, second by Commissioner LeMieux, to approve the Regular Session 
Minutes of February 4, 2019. ALL VOTED AYE. MOTION CARRIED.  
 
4. BUSINESS. 
4.1. Façade Design Review: 116 Main St W – Oldenburg Brewing Co. 
 
Community Development Director Smith Strack explained Property Owner Colt Oldenburg purchased the 
former Volleyball Products building and is converting it into a brewpub. Oldenburg proposes façade 
changes including: removal of storefront, street-facing window and replacement with glass overhead 
garage door; replacement of commercial entry door(west side); replacement of awnings using existing 
structures; replacement of louvers. Smith Strack explained the applicant has brought the proposed 
replacement louvers. Smith Strack explained it is appropriate for the design committee to consider at a 
minimum the following design principles, Regionalism, Context, Hierarchy and what will recede and Color 
when reviewing the proposed storefront update. Smith Strack noted included in the memo are the Design 
Manual guidelines citing Awnings, Windows and Color. Smith Strack explained staff has discussed the 
grey concrete block and reduction of storefront window size with the applicant. Smith Strack noted the 
applicant is open to alternatives including the represented in the mock-up elevation drawing.  
 
Applicant Colt Oldenburg stepped forward to let the committee review the louvers.  
 
Commissioner Krings inquired how the shrinking of the window with brick would affect the business. 
Oldenburg explained the garage door would open like a window noting his thought of adding a bar top 
and bar stools allowing for additional seating. Krings inquired if the applicant would approve of the larger 
window opening. Oldenburg explained if the sidewalk café application were approved, he would be 
agreeable to either storefront noting if the recommendation for the larger window is approved a railing for 
security would need to be installed. Commissioner Krings inquired on the use of gray brick versus 
standard brick. Oldenburg explained the gray rock texture brick has a paintable surface noting the 
difficulty in finding standard brick that would match the rest of the building. Krings inquired from staff if 
either option is be acceptable. Community Development Director Smith Strack explained staff is 
agreeable to either option, noting the design manual states no reduction in window. Krings affirmed her 
preference of the smaller window with painted block. Council Liaison LeMieux explained her preference 



Belle Plaine Design Committee Agenda 
Regular Session 
March 4, 2019 
UNAPPROVED   Page 2 of 2 
 
for the full garage door noting its appeal those driving through town. Commissioner Krant noted his 
appreciation for staff’s comments.  
 
MOTION by Commissioner Krant, second by Commissioner LeMieux to accept Oldenburg’s proposed 
Doors, Awnings, Rock Face Concrete and Louvers. ALL VOTED AYE. MOTION CARRIED.  
 
4.2. Design Committee Work Items. 
 
Community Development Director Smith Strack explained in February the Design Committee roles, 
responsibilities and background information. Smith Strack explained staff recommends general 
discussion with members as to what resources and information would be of assistance in defining a work 
plan and discussion pertaining to meeting on an as needed basis.  
 
Commissioners Krings and Lawler inquired more information. Community Development Director Smith 
Strack explained rather than a monthly meeting if no agenda item or review is needed the Committee will 
meet as needed. Smith Strack noted review of sidewalk Café, new commercial and façade improvements 
are on the horizon citing no agenda items listed for April at this time. Krings stated as long as the Design 
committee remains a viable board noting the importance of reviewing Community projects and zoning 
ordinances. 
 

 
5. ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS. 
5.1. Commissioner Comments. 
 
Commissioner Krant reiterated the importance of the Design Committee to the community.  
 
5.2. Upcoming Meetings. 
1.  Next Regular Meeting, Monday, April 1, 2019 at 5:15PM 
 
Commissioners were reminded of the next meetings.  

 
8. ADJOURNMENT. 
 
MOTION by Commissioner Krings, second by Commissioner Lawler to adjourn the meeting at 5:46 PM. 
ALL VOTED AYE. MOTION CARRIED.  
 
        Respectfully Submitted,  
 
        Renee Eyrich 
        Recording Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 



BELLE PLAINE DESIGN COMMITTEE 
REGULAR MEETING  

APRIL 30, 2019 
 
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE.  
 
President Krant led those present in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER. 1.1. Roll Call. 
 
The Belle Plaine Design Committee conducted a Regular Meeting on Tuesday, April 30, 2019 at City Hall, 
218 North Meridian Street, Belle Plaine, Minnesota. President Krant called the meeting to order at 5:17 
PM with Commissioners Patricia Krings, Benjamin Ogata and Linda Lawler present. Commissioner Kathy 
Joerg was not present.  
 
Also present were Council Liaison LeMieux and Community Development Director Smith Strack. 
 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA. 
 
MOTION by Commissioner Krings, to approve the agenda as presented. ALL VOTED AYE. MOTION 
CARRIED.  
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES.  3.1. Regular Session Minutes of March 4, 2019. 
 
The Regular Session Minutes of March 4, 2019 were inadvertently not included in the packet for review 
and approval. The March 4, 2019 Minutes will be moved for approval to the next Design Committee 
Meeting.  

 
4. BUSINESS. 
4.1. Sign Review: Kiecker Law Office: Omni Kiecker 215 Meridian Street North 
 
Community Development Director Smith Strack explained Omni Kiecker d.b.a. Kiecker Law Office has 
relocated her office to 215 Meridian Street North and request consideration of proposed signage. Smith 
Strack explained the proposed sign is to be located on an existing sign band on the west side of the 
building. Smith Strack noted proposed material is poly-composite and appears to meet standards. 
 
Commissioner Krings inquired if the additional sign on the building was approved as she didn’t recall it 
coming by the Design Commission. Smith Strack confirmed the signage was not previously approved and 
an application for review has been submitted. Krings inquired on the amount of signs allowed on a 
building. Smith Strack explained each tenant is allowed to have a sign.  
 
MOTION by Commissioner Krings, second by Commissioner Lawler, to approve the sign review for 
Kiecker Law Office at 215 Meridian Street North. ALL VOTED AYE. MOTION CARRIED.  
 
4.2. New Commercial Construction Design: Casey’s Retail Company – Lot 1, Block 1 Jane 
Properties Subdivision. 
 
Community Development Director Smith Strack explained Casey’s Retail Company has applied for 
approval of a convenience store with gas and diesel fueling stations at the northwest quadrant of Main 
Street/Hickory Boulevard intersection. Smith Strack noted the property is zoned Industrial Commercial 
District. Smith Strack explained building architecture as a four sided, traditional regional building 
materials, pleasing views from the street and harmony within developments and surrounding locale is 
required. Smith Strack explained landscaping is to emphasize street grid, enhance the pedestrian 
experience, complement architectural features and screen utility areas. Smith Strack explained parking is 
to feature driveway location that is efficient and promotes proper circulation and sufficient landscaping 
and lighting is to be functional and design oriented. Smith Strack noted the proposed design appears to 



Belle Plaine Design Committee  
Regular Session 
April 30, 2019 
UNAPPROVED  Page 2 of 2 
 
meet guidelines citing elevations are in the packet. Smith Strack explained represent ivies are present in 
the audience for questions.  
 
Casey’s representative Mike Gerber showed examples of the product and coloring proposed for the 
building. Commissioner Krings inquired if the materials are signature or unique to Belle Plaine. 
Representative Jon Sheutte explained the coloring is Casey’s standards.  
 
MOTION by Commissioner Krings, second by Commissioner Krant to reapprove the design review for 
Casey’s Retail Company. ALL VOTED AYE. MOTION CARRIED.  
 
4.3. New Commercial Construction Design: DGI Belle Plaine LLC – Lot 1, Block 2 Jane Properties 
Subdivision.   

 
Community Development Director Smith Strack explained DGI Belle Plaine LLC has applied for approval 
of a general merchandise retail store at the northeast quadrant of the Main Street/hickory Boulevard 
intersection, property zoned Industrial Commercial. Smith Strack explained construction is proposed to 
start in 2019. Smith Strack explained the specific design elements noting landscaping, and coloring 
appear to comply. Smith Strack noted the request by the developer for an average of the 97% brick or 
better standard. Smith Strack explained Todd Platt and  of Platt Development Corp is present to show 
examples of exterior materials. Platt dispersed prototype store colored picture noting the painted brick. 
Platt noted review of the city code and adjustments made to the proposed Belle Plaine store citing 
additional changes made to fit within code standards.  
 
Commissioner Krings inquired on the landscaping. Platt explained the landscaping plans were updated to 
meet the City Code noting more landscaping is proposed than a normal Dollar General store. Smith 
Strack explained a discussion with the architect regarding City Code and noted adjustments were made 
from the original application resulting in robust landscaping. Commissioner Krant inquired if the brick was 
typical of a Dollar General Store. Platt explained the brick was added for this store noting typically painted 
concrete block is used.  
 
MOTION by Commissioner Krings, second by Commissioner Krant to approve the design review for DGI 
Belle Plaine LLC with the addition of mulch. ALL VOTED AYE. MOTION CARRIED.  
 
5. ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS. 
5.1. Commissioner Comments. 
 
Commissioner Krings inquired on how far the development of Hickory Blvd will be. Community 
Development Director Smith Strack explained Hickory will curve to the east and become Prosper Street. 
Commissioner Krings commented on the impressive Oldenburg Brewery façade and noted positive steps 
forward with Casey’s and Dollar General coming into town. 
 
5.2. Upcoming Meetings. 

1.  Next Regular Meeting, Monday, June 3, 2019 at 5:15PM 
 

Commissioners were reminded of the upcoming meetings.  
 

6. ADJOURNMENT. 
 
MOTION by Commissioner Krings, second by Commissioner Ogata to adjourn the meeting at 5:44 PM. 
ALL VOTED AYE. MOTION CARRIED.  
 
        Respectfully Submitted,  
 
        Renee Eyrich 
        Recording Secretary 



    MEMORANDUM 

 
DATE: June 3, 2019 
 
TO: Design Committee Members  
 
FROM: Cynthia Smith Strack, Community Development Director  
 
RE: Item 4.1 Sign – 215 Meridian Street North (Ernst Bldg)      
 
 
REQUEST: Consideration of Sign at 215 Meridian St N -  Dynamic Duo Cleaning   
 
 

GENERAL INFORMATION 
Steve and Dian Rohde d.b.a. Dynamic Duo Cleaning have placed a sign at 215 Meridian Street North.  
requests consideration of proposed signage at 215 Meridian Street North.  
 
The sign has been placed in an existing sign band on the west side the building. Current material is wood 
covered with vinyl. Please see attached photos for reference. The sign application represents the material 
as wood/poly. Clarification has been requested as to whether the existing vinyl material is described as 
‘poly’ or if a new polyethylene or polycarbonate sign is to be attached to the wood surface.  
 
Staff has requested a representative attend the DC meeting. 
 
Section 1170.20, Subd. 11(2) requires all permits for signs in the B-3 Central Business District (CBD) be 
forwarded to the Design Committee for approval before any sign permit is issued. Wall signs, up to two 
per building, are allowed in the CBD, provided the signs do not cover more than twenty percent (20%) of 
the building wall. The existing sign combined with the other posted sign are well under the maximum wall 
cover percentage.  
 
Vinyl signs are only allowed on a limited, temporary basis. Permanent sign material is required to be of a 
quality similar to the structure to which it is attached.  
 
The 2016 Design Manual contains design guidelines for signs (attached) in the CBD. Under the policy 
guidelines signs are to compatible with the style, composition, materials, colors, and details of the building 
and with other signs on nearby buildings. The proposed signage is minimal with a corresponding minimal 
impact on CBD viewshed. The proposed color is compatible with existing sign band and sign.  
 
Review of the signage is requested.  
 
 

REQUEST  
Review of signage.  
 
 
 















    MEMORANDUM 

 
DATE: June 3, 2019 
 
TO: Chairperson Krant, Design Committee Members, and Administrator Meyer  
 
FROM: Cynthia Smith Strack, Community Development Director  
 
RE: Item 4.2 Downtown Walk     
 
 
REQUEST: Plan Downtown Walk 
 
 

 
 GENERAL INFORMATION 

As a means of furthering appreciation of local design aspects and as follow up on several façade 
changes, awnings, and signs previously approved by the Design Committee a Downtown walk is 
proposed for the July meeting.  
 
Between now and the July meeting each Commissioner is asked to choose three design elements in the 
downtown they favor and three design elements which they do not favor and associated rationale. 
Commissioners will be asked to share their thoughts as we walk the downtown.  
 
I will point out items the DC has previously approved and request input on whether approved element is 
favored or not favored.  
 
Comment and discussion is welcomed.  
 
 
 
 


	AG_DESIGN_06-03-2019
	3.1. MIN_DESIGN_03-04-2019
	3.2. MIN_DESIGN_04-30-2019
	4.1.a_Mem_Sign_215_Meridian_St_N_Ernst_Bldg_Dynamic_Duo_Cleaning
	4.1.b_Attachment_Sign_Photos_Dynamic_Duo
	4.1.c_Attachment_Design_Manual_Sign_Standards
	4.2 _Mem_Downtown_Walk

